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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

OTTAWA, Monday, March 15, 2010
(1)

[Translation]

The Standing Senate Committee on Official Languages met this
day at 5:03 p.m., in room 505 of the Victoria Building, to hold its
organization meeting pursuant to rule 88 of the Rules of the Senate.

Members of the committee present: The Honourable Senators
Boisvenu, Champagne, P.C., Chaput, De Bané, P.C.,
Fortin-Duplessis, Mockler, Seidman and Tardif (8).

In attendance: Marie-Ève Hudon, Research Analyst,
Parliamentary Information and Research Service, Library of
Parliament and Francine Pressault, Communications Officer,
Senate Communications Directorate.

Also in attendance: The official reporters of the Senate.

The Clerk of the Committee presided over the election of
the Chair.

The Honourable Senator Champagne, P.C., moved:

That the Honourable Senator Chaput do take the chair of
this committee.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Chaput took the chair.

The Honourable Senator Seidman moved:

That the Honourable Senator Champagne, P.C.,
be deputy chair of this committee.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Mockler moved:

That the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure be
composed of the chair, the deputy chair, and one other
member of the committee, to be designated after the usual
consultation; and

That the subcommittee be empowered to make decisions
on behalf of the committee with respect to its agenda, to
invite witnesses, and to schedule hearings.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Tardif moved:

That the committee publish its proceedings; and

That the chair be authorized to set the number of printed
copies to meet demand.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Fortin-Duplessis moved:

That, pursuant to rule 89, the chair be authorized to hold
meetings, to receive and authorize the publication of the
evidence when a quorum is not present, provided that a
member of the committee from both the government and the
opposition be present.

PROCÈS-VERBAUX

OTTAWA, le lundi 15 mars 2010
(1)

[Français]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles se réunit
aujourd’hui, à 17 h 3, dans la salle 505 de l’édifice Victoria, pour
tenir sa séance d’organisation, conformément à l’article 88
du Règlement.

Membres du comité présents : Les honorables sénateurs Boisvenu,
Champagne, C.P., Chaput, De Bané, C.P., Fortin-Duplessis,
Mockler, Seidman et Tardif (8).

Également présentes : Marie-Ève Hudon, analyste, Service
d’information et de recherche parlementaires, Bibliothèque du
Parlement et Francine Pressault, agente de communications,
Direction des communications du Sénat.

Aussi présents : Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.

La greffière du comité préside à l’élection à la présidence.

L’honorable sénateur Champagne, C.P., propose :

Que l’honorable sénateur Chaput soit présidente de
ce comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Chaput occupe le fauteuil.

L’honorable sénateur Seidman propose :

Que l’honorable sénateur Champagne, C.P., soit
vice-présidente de ce comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Mockler propose :

Que le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soit
composé de la présidente, de la vice-présidente et d’un autre
membre du comité désigné après les consultations d’usage; et

Que le sous-comité soit autorisé à prendre des décisions
au nom du comité relativement au programme, à inviter les
témoins et à établir l’horaire des audiences.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Tardif, propose :

Que le comité fasse publier ses délibérations; et

Que la présidence soit autorisée à fixer la quantité de
copies imprimées en fonction des besoins.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Fortin-Duplessis propose :

Que, conformément à l’article 89 du Règlement, la
présidence soit autorisée à tenir des réunions pour
entendre des témoignages et à en permettre la publication
en l’absence de quorum, pourvu qu’un membre du comité
du gouvernement et de l’opposition soient présents.
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The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Tardif moved:

That the committee adopt the draft first report, prepared
in accordance with rule 104(2).

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The Honourable Senator De Bané, P.C., moved:

That the committee ask the Library of Parliament to
assign analysts to the committee;

That the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure be
authorized to retain the services of such experts as may be
required by the work of the committee; and

That the chair, on behalf of the committee, direct the
research staff in the preparation of studies, analyses,
summaries, and draft reports.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Boisvenu moved:

That, pursuant to section 7, chapter 3:06 of the Senate
Administrative Rules, authority to commit funds be
conferred individually on the chair, the deputy chair, and
the clerk of the committee;

That, pursuant to section 8, chapter 3:06 of the Senate
Administrative Rules, authority for certifying accounts
payable by the committee be conferred individually on the
chair, the deputy chair, and the clerk of the committee; and

That, notwithstanding the foregoing, in cases related to
consultants and personnel services, the authority to commit
funds and certify accounts be conferred jointly on the chair
and deputy chair.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Fortin-Duplessis moved:

That the committee empower the Subcommittee on
Agenda and Procedure to designate, as required, one or
more members of the committee and/or such staff as may be
necessary to travel on assignment on behalf of the committee.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Champagne, P.C., moved:

That the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure be
authorized to:

1) determine whether any member of the committee is on
‘‘official business’’ for the purposes of paragraph 8(3)(a)
of the Senators Attendance Policy, published in the
Journals of the Senate on Wednesday, June 3, 1998; and

2) consider any member of the committee to be on
‘‘official business’’ if that member is: (a) attending an
event or meeting related to the work of the committee;
or (b) making a presentation related to the work of the
committee; and

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Tardif propose :

Que le comité adopte l’ébauche du premier rapport
préparé conformément à l’article 104(2) du Règlement.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur De Bané, C.P., propose :

Que le comité demande à la Bibliothèque du Parlement
d’affecter des analystes au comité;

Que le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soit
autorisé à faire appel aux services d’experts-conseils dont le
comité peut avoir besoin dans le cadre de ses travaux; et

Que la présidence, au nom du comité, dirige le personnel
de recherche dans la préparation d’études, d’analyses, de
résumés et de projets de rapport.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Boisvenu propose :

Que, conformément à l’article 7, chapitre 3:06, du
Règlement administratif du Sénat, l’autorisation d’engager
des fonds du comité soit conférée individuellement à la
présidente, à la vice-présidente et à la greffière du comité;

Que, conformément à l’article 8, chapitre 3:06, du
Règlement administratif du Sénat, l’autorisation d’approuver
les comptes à payer au nom du comité soit conférée
individuellement à la présidente, à la vice-présidente et à la
greffière du comité; et

Que, nonobstant ce qui précède, lorsqu’il s’agit de services
de consultants et de personnel, l’autorisation d’engager des
fonds et d’approuver les comptes à payer soit conférée
conjointement à la présidente et à la vice-présidente.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Fortin-Duplessis propose :

Que le comité autorise le Sous-comité du programme et
de la procédure à désigner, au besoin, un ou plusieurs
membres du comité, de même que le personnel nécessaire,
qui se déplaceront au nom du comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Champagne, C.P., propose :

Que le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soit
autorisé à :

1) déterminer si un membre du comité remplit un
« engagement officiel » au sens de l’alinéa 8(3)a) de
la politique relative à la présence des sénateurs, publiée
dans les Journaux du Sénat du mercredi 3 juin 1998; et

2) considérer qu’un membre du comité remplit un
« engagement officiel » si ce membre : a) assiste à
une activité ou à une réunion se rapportant aux
travaux du comité; ou b) fait un exposé ayant trait aux
travaux du comité; et
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That the subcommittee report at the earliest opportunity
any decisions taken with respect to the designation of
members of the committee travelling on committee business.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Mockler moved:

That, pursuant to the Senate guidelines for witness
expenses, the committee may reimburse reasonable
travelling and living expenses for one witness from any one
organization and payment will take place upon application,
but that the chair be authorized to approve expenses for a
second witness should there be exceptional circumstances.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Tardif moved:

That the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure be
empowered to direct communications officer(s) assigned to
the committee in the development of communications plans
where appropriate and to request the services of the Senate
Communications Directorate for the purposes of their
development and implementation; and

That the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure be
empowered to allow coverage by electronic media of the
public proceedings of the committee with the least possible
disruption of its hearings.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The chair informed the members of the committee that the time
slot for the meetings is on Mondays, from 4:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.

The Honourable Senator Champagne, P.C., moved:

That the senators’ staff be allowed to stay in the meeting
room when the committee sits in camera, unless the
members of the committee decide otherwise.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

At 5:35 p.m., the committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

ATTEST:

OTTAWA, Monday, March 22, 2010
(2)

[Translation]

The Standing Senate Committee on Official Languages met
this day, in camera, at 5:03 p.m., in room 505 of the Victoria
Building, the Honourable Maria Chaput, presiding.

Members of the committee present: The Honourable Senators
Boisvenu, Champagne, P.C., Chaput, De Bané, P.C.,
Fortin-Duplessis, Losier-Cool, Mockler, Seidman and Tardif (9).

Que le sous-comité fasse rapport à la première occasion
de ses décisions relatives aux membres du comité qui
voyagent pour les affaires du comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Mockler propose :

Que, conformément aux lignes directrices du Sénat
gouvernant les frais de déplacement des témoins, le comité
puisse rembourser les dépenses raisonnables de voyage et
d’hébergement à un témoin par organisme, après qu’une
demande de remboursement ait été présentée, mais que la
présidence soit autorisée à permettre le remboursement de
dépenses pour un deuxième témoin du même organisme s’il
y a circonstances exceptionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Tardif propose :

Que le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soit
autorisé à diriger au besoin les agents des communications
affectés au comité pour ce qui est de l’élaboration des plans
de communications et à demander l’appui de la Direction
des communications du Sénat aux fins de l’élaboration et de
la mise en œuvre de ces plans; et

Que le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soit
autorisé à permettre de diffuser les délibérations publiques
du comité par les médias d’information électroniques de
manière à déranger le moins possible ses travaux.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

La présidente informe les membres du comité que l’horaire
prévoit que le comité tienne ses séances les lundis, de 16 h à 20 h.

L’honorable sénateur Champagne, C.P., propose :

Que, le personnel des sénateurs soit autorisé à demeurer
dans la salle de réunion lorsque le comité siégera à huis clos,
à moins que le comité n’en décide autrement.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

À 17 h 35, la séance est suspendue jusqu’à nouvelle
convocation de la présidence.

ATTESTÉ :

OTTAWA, le lundi 22 mars 2010
(2)

[Français]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles se
réunit aujourd’hui, à huis clos, à 17 h 3, dans la salle 505
de l’édifice Victoria, sous la présidence de l’honorable
Maria Chaput (présidente).

Membres du comité présents : Les honorables sénateurs Boisvenu,
Champagne, C.P., Chaput, De Bané, C.P., Fortin-Duplessis,
Losier-Cool, Mockler, Seidman et Tardif (9).
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In attendance: Marie-Ève Hudon, Research Analyst,
Parliamentary Information and Research Service, Library of
Parliament and Francine Pressault, Communications Officer,
Senate Communications Directorate.

Pursuant to rule 92(2)(e), the committee considered a
draft agenda.

It was agreed that the following order of reference be adopted:

That the Standing Committee on Official Languages be
authorized to study and to report on the application of the
Official Languages Act and of the regulations and directives
made under it, within those institutions subject to the Act;

That the committee be authorized to study the state of the
implementation of Part VII of the Official Languages Act,
particularly the action taken by federal institutions
following the amendments to the Act in November 2005;

That the committee be authorized to study the extent to
which the Olympic and Paralympic Games, and in
particular the opening ceremony, reflected Canada’s
linguistic duality and to examine the report of the
Commissioner of Official Languages on this matter;

That the committee be authorized to study the realities of
English-speaking communities in Quebec, particularly the
various aspects affecting their development and vitality
(e.g., community development, education, youth, arts and
culture, health);

That the committee also be authorized to study the
reports and papers produced by the Minister of Official
Languages, the President of the Treasury Board, the
Minister of Canadian Heritage and the Commissioner of
Official Languages, as well as any other material concerning
official languages;

That the papers and evidence received and taken and
work accomplished by the committee on this subject since
the beginning of the First Session of the Thirty-ninth
Parliament be referred to the committee; and

That the committee report from time to time to the
Senate but no later than December 31, 2010, and that the
committee retain all powers necessary to publicize its
findings until June 30, 2011.

At 5:55 p.m., the committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

ATTEST:

Danielle Labonté

Clerk of the Committee

Également présentes : Marie-Ève Hudon, analyste, Service
d’information et de recherche parlementaires, Bibliothèque du
Parlement et Francine Pressault, agente de communications,
Direction des communications du Sénat.

Conformément à l’article 92(2)e) du Règlement, le comité
examine un projet d’ordre du jour.

Il est convenu d’adopter l’ordre de renvoi suivant :

Que le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles
soit autorisé à étudier, afin d’en faire rapport, l’application de
la Loi sur les langues officielles, ainsi que des règlements et
instructions en découlant, au sein des institutions assujetties à
la loi;

Que le comité soit autorisé à examiner l’état de la mise en
œuvre de la partie VII de la Loi sur les langues officielles, et
plus particulièrement les actions prises par les institutions
fédérales depuis les modifications apportées à la Loi en
novembre 2005;

Que le comité soit autorisé à étudier dans quelle mesure
les Jeux olympiques et paralympiques, et plus
particulièrement la cérémonie d’ouverture, ont reflété la
dualité linguistique du Canada et à considérer le rapport du
commissaire aux langues officielles à ce sujet;

Que le comité soit autorisé à examiner la situation des
communautés anglophones du Québec, et plus
particulièrement les différents secteurs qui touchent au
développement et à l’épanouissement de ces communautés
(p. ex. le développement communautaire, l’éducation, la
jeunesse, les arts et la culture, la santé);

Que le comité soit aussi autorisé à étudier les rapports et
documents produits par le ministre du Patrimoine canadien
et des Langues officielles, le président du Conseil du Trésor
et le commissaire aux langues officielles, ainsi que toute
autre matière concernant les langues officielles;

Que les documents reçus, les témoignages entendus et les
travaux accomplis sur la question par le comité depuis le
début de la première session de la trente-neuvième
législature soient renvoyés au comité; et

Que le comité fasse de temps à autre rapport au Sénat,
mais au plus tard le 31 décembre 2010, et qu’il conserve,
jusqu’au 30 juin 2011, tous les pouvoirs nécessaires pour
diffuser ses conclusions.

À 17 h 55, la séance est levée jusqu’à nouvelle convocation de
la présidence.

ATTESTÉ :

La greffière du comité,
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REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, March 16, 2010

The Standing Senate Committee on Official Languages has the
honour to table its

FIRST REPORT

Your committee, which was authorized by the Senate to incur
expenses for the purpose of its examination and consideration of
such legislation and other matters as were referred to it, reports,
pursuant to rule 104(2), that the expenses incurred by the
committee during the Second Session of the Fortieth Parliament
are as follows:

With respect to its special study on the application of the
Official Languages Act:

Transportation and Communications $ —
Professional and Other Services 1,978
All Other Expenditures 65
Witness Expenses 1,246
Total $ 3,289

In addition to the expenses for its special study as set out
above, the committee also incurred general postal charges in the
amount of $ 51.

During this session, the committee considered one order of
reference, held 23 meetings and heard more than 42 hours of
testimony from 86 witnesses. In total, the committee produced
4 reports.

Respectfully submitted,

MARIA CHAPUT

Chair

RAPPORT DU COMITÉ

Le mardi 16 mars 2010

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles a
l’honneur de déposer son

PREMIER RAPPORT

Votre comité, qui a été autorisé par le Sénat à engager des
dépenses aux fins d’examiner les mesures législatives et autres
questions qui lui ont été renvoyées, dépose, conformément à
l’article 104 (2) du Règlement, le relevé suivant des dépenses
contractées à cette fin par le comité au cours de la deuxième
session de la quarantième législature :

Relativement à son étude sur l’application de la Loi sur les
langues officielles :

Transports et communications — $
Services professionnels et autres 1 978
Autres dépenses 65
Dépenses des témoins 1 246
Total 3 289 $

Outre les dépenses listées ci-dessus encourues dans le cadre de
son étude spéciale, le comité a encouru des frais généraux de poste
s’élevant à 51 $.

Durant la session en cause, le comité a examiné un ordre de
renvoi, tenu 23 réunions et entendu plus de 42 heures de
témoignages de 86 témoins. Au total, le comité a produit
4 rapports.

Respectueusement soumis,

La présidente,
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EVIDENCE

OTTAWA, Monday, March 15, 2010

The Standing Senate Committee on Official Languages met
this day at 5:03 p.m., pursuant to rule 88 of the Rules of the
Senate, to hold an organization meeting.

[Translation]

Danielle Labonté, Clerk of the Committee: I would like to
welcome you to the organization meeting of the Standing Senate
Committee on Official Languages. Honourable senators, there is
a quorum. As the clerk of the committee, it is my duty to preside
over the election of the chair.

I am ready to receive a motion to that effect.

Senator Champagne: I move that Senator Chaput do take the
chair since she did such a good job last session.

Senator De Bané: Senator Tardif and I second that motion.

Ms. Labonté: Thank you very much. Are there any other
nominations?

Senator Mockler: Madam Clerk, I believe it is unanimous.

Ms. Labonté: Honourable senators, is it your pleasure to adopt
this motion?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

Ms. Labonté: I declare the motion carried. I invite the
Honourable Senator Chaput to take the chair.

Senator Maria Chaput (Chair) in the chair.

The Chair: Honourable senators, thank you for trusting me to
preside over the Standing Senate Committee on Official
Languages. It is a privilege. I appreciate it and I thank you.
Please be assured of my full cooperation.

We are going to move to point 2, which is the election of the
deputy chair.

[English]

Senator Seidman: It is a great pleasure for me to nominate
Senator Andrée Champagne as the deputy chair of the committee.

[Translation]

Senator De Bané: Madam Chair, I would like to second that
recommendation both on my behalf and on behalf of Senator
Tardif. As my colleague Senator Mockler said, the motion
is unanimous.

The Chair: It is moved by the Honourable Senator Seidman,
seconded by the Honourable Senators De Bané and Tardif, that the
Honourable Senator Champagne be deputy chair of the committee.
Honourable senators, is it your pleasure to adopt this motion?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

TÉMOIGNAGES

OTTAWA, le lundi 15 mars 2010

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles se réunit
aujourd’hui à 17 h 3, conformément à l’article 88 du Règlement du
Sénat, pour tenir une réunion d’organisation.

[Français]

Danielle Labonté, greffière du comité : Je vous souhaite la
bienvenue à la réunion d’organisation du Comité sénatorial
permanent des langues officielles. Honorables sénateurs, il y a
quorum. À titre de greffière du comité, il est de mon devoir de
présider à l’élection de la présidence.

Je suis prête à recevoir une motion à cet effet.

Le sénateur Champagne : Je propose que madame le sénateur
Chaput soit notre présidente, comme elle l’a si bien fait lors de la
dernière session.

Le sénateur De Bané :Madame le sénateur Tardif et moi-même
appuyons cette motion.

Mme Labonté : Merci beaucoup. Y a-t-il d’autres nominations?

Le sénateur Mockler : Madame la greffière, je crois que
c’est unanime.

Mme Labonté : Honorables sénateurs, consentez-vous à
adopter cette motion?

Des voix : Oui.

Mme Labonté : Je déclare la motion adoptée. J’invite
l’honorable sénateur Chaput à prendre place au fauteuil.

Le sénateur Maria Chaput (présidente) occupe le fauteuil.

La présidente : Honorables sénateurs, je vous remercie de la
confiance que vous me faites en me permettant de présider le
Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles. C’est pour
moi un privilège. Je l’apprécie et je vous en remercie. Soyez
assurés de mon entière collaboration.

Nous allons passer au point 2, qui est l’élection à la
vice-présidence.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Seidman : C’est avec grand plaisir que je propose que
l’honorable sénateur Andrée Champagne soit la vice-présidente
du comité.

[Français]

Le sénateur De Bané : Madame la présidente, en mon nom et
au nom de madame le sénateur Tardif, j’aimerais appuyer cette
recommandation. Comme le dit mon collègue le sénateur
Mockler, c’est une proposition unanime.

La présidente : Il est proposé par l’honorable sénateur Seidman,
appuyé par les honorables sénateurs De Bané et Tardif, que
l’honorable sénateur Champagne soit vice-présidente du comité.
Honorables sénateurs, consentez-vous à adopter cette motion?

Des voix : Oui.
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Senator Champagne: I am guessing that those who were there
and saw me chairing our meetings for a few weeks were not too
disappointed in my performance.

I am sure you will join me in telling Senator Chaput how
delighted we are to see her again here with us in good health.

The Chair: Thank you very much. Point 3, the Subcommittee
on Agenda and Procedure. You have the standard motion in front
of you that states:

That the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure be
composed of the chair, the deputy chair, and one other
member of the committee, to be designated after the usual
consultation; and

That the subcommittee be empowered to make decisions
on behalf of the committee with respect to its agenda, to
invite witnesses, and to schedule hearings.

The normal term for what we commonly call the steering
committee is the subcommittee, is it not?

Ms. Labonté: That is so. The Subcommittee on Agenda and
Procedure.

The Chair: We used to call it the steering committee. Could a
senator move the motion?

Senator Mockler: Madam Chair, if I may, after consultation, I
would like to move that Senator Fortin-Duplessis be third
member of the committee.

Senator De Bané: My colleague Senator Tardif and I
enthusiastically second the motion.

The Chair: What I have just read is moved by the Honourable
Senator Mockler, but also that the third person be Senator
Fortin-Duplessis. Is that correct?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chair: The motion is carried unanimously. Thank you
Senator Fortin-Duplessis.

Senator Fortin-Duplessis: Thank you very much.

The Chair: Motion to publish the committee’s proceedings.
This says ‘‘that the committee publish its proceedings and that the
chair be authorized to set the number of printed copies to
meet demand.’’

Senator Tardif: I move that motion.

The Chair: It is moved by the Honourable Senator Tardif.
Do we need a seconder?

Ms. Labonté: No.

The Chair: That motion as mentioned is moved by the
Honourable Senator Tardif. Is it the pleasure of all senators to
adopt the motion?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

Le sénateur Champagne : J’imagine que ceux et celles qui
étaient là et qui m’ont vue présider nos réunions pendant quelques
semaines n’ont pas été trop déçus de ma performance.

Je suis certaine que vous vous joindrez à moi pour dire à
madame le sénateur Chaput à quel point nous sommes ravis de la
retrouver avec nous en bonne santé.

La présidente : Merci beaucoup. Le point 3, le Sous-comité du
programme et de la procédure. Vous avez devant vous la motion
standard qui demande :

Que le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soit
composé du président, du vice-président et d’un autre
membre du comité désigné après les consultations d’usage;

Que le sous-comité soit autorisé à prendre des décisions
au nom du comité relativement au programme, à inviter les
témoins et à établir l’horaire des audiences.

Le vrai terme de ce qu’on appelle communément le comité
directeur, c’est le sous-comité. N’est-ce pas?

Mme Labonté : C’est bien cela. Le Sous-comité du programme
et de la procédure.

La présidente : Auparavant on l’appelait le comité directeur.
Est-ce qu’un sénateur pourrait en faire la proposition?

Le sénateur Mockler : Madame la présidente, si vous me
permettez, après consultation, j’aimerais proposer le sénateur
Fortin-Duplessis en tant que troisième personne membre du comité.

Le sénateur De Bané : Ma collègue le sénateur Tardif et
moi-même appuyons cette proposition avec enthousiasme.

La présidente : Il est proposé par l’honorable sénateur Mockler
ce que je viens de lire, mais en plus que la troisième personne soit
le sénateur Fortin-Duplessis. C’est bien cela?

Des voix : D’accord.

La présidente : La motion est adoptée à l’unanimité. Merci
sénateur Fortin-Duplessis.

Le sénateur Fortin-Duplessis : Merci beaucoup.

La présidente : Publication des délibérations du comité. Ce
point consiste à ce que le comité fasse publier ses délibérations et
« que la présidence soit autorisée à fixer la quantité de copies
imprimées en fonction des besoins. »

Le sénateur Tardif : Je propose cette motion.

La présidente : Il est proposé par l’honorable sénateur Tardif.
A-t-on besoin d’un appui?

Mme Labonté : Non.

La présidente : Cette motion est proposée par l’honorable
sénateur Tardif ce qui est mentionné. Est-ce que tous les sénateurs
sont d’accord?

Des voix : D’accord.
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The Chair: The motion is carried. As to point 5, which asks for
‘‘authorization to hold meetings and receive evidence when
quorum is not present,’’ I need an honourable senator to move
this motion.

Senator Fortin-Duplessis: I move that motion.

The Chair: It is moved by Senator Fortin-Duplessis that:

Pursuant to rule 89, the chair be authorized to hold
meetings, to receive and authorize the publication of the
evidence when a quorum is not present, provided that a
member of the committee from both the government and the
opposition be present.

Is it your pleasure to adopt this motion?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

The Chair: The motion is carried. As to point 6, the financial
report, you received what we call the budget, the first report.

Senator Tardif: I move that motion.

The Chair: It is moved by Senator Tardif that the committee
adopt the draft first report, prepared in accordance with rule 104.
And you received the first report. Do you all have it in front of you?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

The Chair: Are you ready to adopt the motion?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

The Chair: The motion is carried. We are moving now to
point 7, research staff:

That the committee ask the Library of Parliament to
assign analysts to the committee, that the Subcommittee on
Agenda and Procedure be authorized to retain the services
of such experts as may be required by the work of the
committee, and that the chair, on behalf of the committee,
direct the research staff in the preparation of studies,
analyses, summaries, and draft reports.

Is there an honourable senator to move this motion?

Senator De Bané: Yes. Madam Chair, I am very pleased to see
that Ms. Marie-Ève Hudon from the Library of Parliament is
already here. I was recently in Paris at a conference and she had
prepared research work for me on the topics to be discussed. It
was an international conference organized by the United Nations
and the World Bank. The documents she had prepared for me
were of high quality and a number of people at the conference
asked me for copies. I am very pleased that Ms. Hudon will be
our researcher.

The Chair: Is point 7 adopted?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

La présidente : La motion est adoptée. Pour ce qui est du
point 5 qui demande « l’autorisation à tenir des réunions et
entendre des témoignages en l’absence de quorum ». J’aurais
besoin d’un honorable sénateur pour proposer cette motion.

Le sénateur Fortin-Duplessis : Je propose cette motion.

La présidente : Il est proposé par le sénateur Fortin-Duplessis
que :

Conformément à l’article 89 du Règlement, la présidence
soit autorisée à tenir des réunions pour entendre des
témoignages et à en permettre la publication en l’absence
de quorum, pourvu qu’un membre du Comité du
gouvernement et de l’opposition soient présents.

Vous êtes tous en accord avec cette proposition?

Des voix : Oui.

La présidente : La motion est adoptée. En ce qui concerne le
sixième point, le rapport financier. Vous avez reçu ce qu’on
appelle le budget, le premier rapport.

Le sénateur Tardif : Je propose cette motion.

La présidente : Il est proposé par le sénateur Tardif, que le comité
adopte l’ébauche du premier rapport préparé conformément à
l’article 104 du Règlement. Et vous avez reçu ce premier rapport.
Est-ce que vous l’avez tous devant vous?

Des voix : Oui.

La présidente : Êtes-vous prêts à adopter cette motion?

Des voix : Oui.

La présidente : La motion est adoptée. Nous passons
maintenant au point 7, le personnel de recherche.

Le comité demande à la Bibliothèque du Parlement
d’affecter des analystes au comité, que le Sous-comité du
programme et de la procédure soit autorisé à faire appel aux
services d’experts-conseils dont le comité peut avoir besoin
dans le cadre de ses travaux, et que la présidence, au nom du
comité, dirige le personnel de recherche dans la préparation
d’études, d’analyses, de résumés, et de projets de rapport.

Est-ce qu’il y a un honorable sénateur pour proposer
cette motion?

Le sénateur De Bané : Oui. Madame la présidente, je suis très
heureux de voir que madame Marie-Ève Hudon de la
Bibliothèque du Parlement est déjà ici. Récemment j’étais à
Paris en train de participer à une réunion et elle m’avait préparé
des travaux de recherche sur des sujets à être discutés. Il s’agissait
de la conférence internationale organisée par les Nations Unies et
la Banque Mondiale. Les documents qu’elle m’a préparés étaient
de très grande qualité et plusieurs m’ont demandé des exemplaires
à cette conférence. Je suis très heureux que madame Hudon soit
notre recherchiste.

La présidente : Le point 7 est-il adopté?

Des voix : Oui.

1:10 Official Languages 22-3-2010



The Chair: The motion is carried. I ask that our analyst join
our committee. So, Marie-Ève, the committee is very happy to
have you.

Moving on to point 8, ‘‘authority to commit funds and
certify accounts’’:

That, pursuant to section 7, chapter 3:06 of the Senate
Administrative Rules, authority to commit funds be
conferred individually on the chair, the deputy chair, and
the clerk of the committee;

That, pursuant to section 8, chapter 3:06 of the Senate
Administrative Rules, authority for certifying accounts
payable by the committee be conferred individually on the
chair, the deputy chair, and the clerk of the committee; and

That, notwithstanding the foregoing, in cases related to
consultants and personnel services, the authority to commit
funds and certify accounts be conferred jointly on the chair
and deputy chair.

Senator Boisvenu: I move that motion.

The Chair: Do you agree with point 8?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

The Chair: The motion is carried. We are now at point 9, travel:

That the committee empower the Subcommittee on
Agenda and Procedure to designate, as required, one or
more members of the committee and/or such staff as may be
necessary to travel on assignment on behalf of the committee.

Senator Fortin-Duplessis: I move that motion. Is that agreeable,
honourable senators?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

The Chair: The motion is carried. Point 10, designation of
members travelling on committee business:

That the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure be
authorized to:

1) determine whether any member of the committee is on
‘‘official business’’ for the purposes of paragraph 8(3)(a)
of the Senators Attendance Policy, published in the
Journals of the Senate on Wednesday, June 3, 1998; and

2) consider any member of the committee to be on
‘‘official business’’ if that member is: (a) attending an
event or meeting related to the work of the committee;
or (b) making a presentation related to the work of the
committee; and

That the subcommittee report at the earliest opportunity any
decisions taken with respect to the designation of members of the
committee travelling on committee business.

Senator Champagne: I move that motion.

The Chair: Do you agree, honourable senators?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

La présidente : La motion est adoptée. Je demanderais à notre
analyste de se joindre à notre comité. Alors Marie-Ève, le comité
est très heureux de vous accueillir.

Poursuivons avec le point 8, « autorisation d’engager des fonds
et d’approuver les comptes à payer. »

Que, conformément à l’article 7, chapitre 3:06, du
Règlement administratif du Sénat, l’autorisation d’engager
des fonds du comité soit conférée individuellement au
président, au vice-président et au greffier du comité;

Que, conformément à l’article 8, chapitre 3:06, du
Règlement administratif du Sénat, l’autorisation d’approuver
les comptes à payer au nom du comité soit conférée
individuellement au président, au vice-président et au
greffier du comité;

Et que, nonobstant ce qui précède, lorsqu’il s’agit de
services de consultants et de personnel, l’autorisation
d’engager des fonds et d’approuver les comptes à payer soit
conférée conjointement au président et au vice-président.

Le sénateur Boisvenu : Je propose cette motion.

La présidente : Est-ce que vous êtes en accord avec le point 8?

Des voix : Oui.

La présidente : La motion est adoptée. Nous en sommes
maintenant au point 9 : déplacements.

Que le Comité autorise le Sous-comité du programme et
de la procédure à désigner, au besoin, un ou plusieurs
membres du Comité, de même que le personnel nécessaire,
qui se déplaceront au nom du Comité.

Le sénateur Fortin-Duplessis : J’en fais la proposition. Cela
vous convient-ils honorables sénateurs?

Des voix : Oui.

La présidente : La motion est adoptée. Point 10 : désignation
des membres qui voyagent pour les affaires du comité.

Que le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soit
autorisé à :

1) déterminer si un membre du comité remplit un
« engagement officiel » au sens de l’alinéa 8(3)a) de
la politique relative à la présence des sénateurs, publiée
dans les Journaux du Sénat du mercredi 3 juin 1998, et;

2) considérer qu’un membre du comité remplit un
« engagement officiel » si ce membre : a) assiste à
une activité ou à une réunion se rapportant aux
travaux du comité; ou b) fait un exposé ayant trait aux
travaux du comité; et;

Que le sous-comité fasse rapport à la première occasion
de ses décisions relatives aux membres du comité qui
voyagent pour les affaires du comité.

Le sénateur Champagne : Je propose cette motion.

La présidente : Êtes-vous d’accord honorables sénateurs.

Des voix : Oui.
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The Chair: The motion is carried. Point 11, travelling and living
expenses of witnesses:

That, pursuant to the Senate guidelines for witness
expenses, the committee may reimburse reasonable
travelling and living expenses for one witness from any one
organization and payment will take place upon application,
but that the chair be authorized to approve expenses for a
second witness should there be exceptional circumstances.

Senator Mockler: I move that motion.

The Chair: Do you agree with point 11?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

The Chair: The motion is carried. Point 12, Communications:

That the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure be
empowered to direct communications officer(s) assigned to
the committee in the development of communications plans
where appropriate and to request the services of the Senate
Communications Directorate for the purposes of their
development and implementation; and

That the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure be
empowered to allow such coverage at its discretion.

Senator Tardif: I move that motion.

The Chair: Do you agree with point 12?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

The Chair: The motion is carried. As to point 13, which deals
with the time slot for regular meetings, if I understand correctly,
the official time slot we were given is from 4 p.m. to 8 p.m.
Obviously, we can discuss the regular and suitable hours for our
next meetings. During the last session, you held the meetings from
5 p.m. to 8 p.m. Would the members of the committee like that?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

The Chair: The meetings will be held at 5 p.m., except, if a
minister or someone cannot come at 5 p.m., we could make an
exception. Is that agreeable?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

Senator Champagne: That is very wise.

The Chair: The motion is carried.

Other business. In a few moments, we will be going in camera.
Would you like to discuss the general order of reference in the
public meeting? You have received a copy of last session’s order
of reference.

Senator De Bané:Madam Chair, I move that our policy be that
the meetings of the committee be public, unless it is an issue that
concerns the staff or any other issue that, following a vote,
justifies an in camera meeting. In general, our meetings are public.
They are not public if we are dealing with staff management. If

La présidente : La motion est adoptée. Point 11, frais de
déplacement des témoins.

Que, conformément aux lignes directrices du Sénat
gouvernant les frais de déplacement des témoins, le comité
puisse rembourser les dépenses raisonnables de voyage et
d’hébergement à un témoin par organisme après qu’une
demande de remboursement ait été présentée, mais que la
présidence soit autorisée à permettre le remboursement de
dépenses pour un deuxième témoin du même organisme s’il
y a circonstances exceptionnelles.

Le sénateur Mockler : Je propose cette motion.

La présidente : Êtes-vous d’accord avec le point 11?

Des voix : Oui.

La présidente : La motion est adoptée. Point 12, Communications.

Que le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soit
autorisé à diriger au besoin les agents des communications
affectés au comité pour ce qui est de l’élaboration des plans
de communications et à demander l’appui de la Direction
des communications du Sénat aux fins de l’élaboration et de
la mise en œuvre de ces plans; et

Que le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soit
autorisé de permettre cette diffusion à sa discrétion.

Le sénateur Tardif : Je propose cette motion.

La présidente : Êtes-vous d’accord avec le point 12?

Des voix : Oui.

La présidente : La motion est adoptée. En ce qui concerne le
point 13 qui traite de l’horaire des réunions régulières. Si je
comprends bien, le créneau horaire officiel qui nous a été donné
est de 16 heures à 20 heures. Évidemment, on peut discuter des
heures convenables et régulières de nos prochaines réunions.
À la dernière session, vous commenciez les réunions de 17 heures
à 20 heures. Est-ce ce que les membres du comité aimeraient?

Des voix : Oui.

La présidente : Les réunions auraient lieu à 17 heures, sauf si
un ministre ou quelqu’un ne pourrait pas venir à 17 heures, on
pourrait faire exception. Cela vous convient-il?

Des voix : Oui.

Le sénateur Champagne : C’est tout à fait sage.

La présidente : La motion est adoptée.

Autres affaires. Nous allons dans quelques instants passer à
huis clos. Est-ce que vous aimeriez que nous discutions de l’ordre
de renvoi général en séance publique? Vous avez une copie de
l’ordre de renvoi de la dernière session qui vous a été remise.

Le sénateur De Bané : Madame la présidente, je propose que
nous adoptions comme politique que les réunions du comité
soient publiques, sauf s’il s’agit de traiter d’une question qui
touche le personnel ou de toute autre question qui, à la suite d’un
vote, autorise le huis clos. En général, nos réunions sont
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there are cases where we would want to be in camera, there should
be a vote to authorize it, rather than saying that we can go in
camera whenever we want.

In other committees I sit on, we have adopted the principle that
the meetings are public, except when there are staff management
issues. If there are other cases, we must specifically vote to go in
camera.

Senator Champagne: I would like to add one thing. I think that
has been done quite regularly. For whatever reason, if the meeting
is in camera, we allow our staff members to stay in the room. I
just want to be sure that this is correct so that I do not have to ask
each time.

The Chair: Senator Champagne, would you be ready to
introduce the motion that allows the staff to stay in the room
for the entire meeting?

Senator Champagne: Absolutely.

The Chair: That means that the senators’ staff would be
allowed to stay in the meeting room when the committee sits in
camera, unless the members of the committee decide otherwise.

Senator Champagne: Right.

Senator Fortin-Duplessis: I second the motion.

The Chair: So you are in agreement with that. The motion
is carried.

The Chair: Let us go back to the point raised by Senator
De Bané. Are you saying that, when we have a public meeting and
we go in camera, the committee would have to adopt a motion
each time?

Senator De Bané: The meetings are public, but I understand
very well that some topics that concern the committee staff do not
need to be public. But meetings should be held in camera only
under exceptional circumstances and not when we feel like it.

The Chair: Until now — and correct me if I am wrong —
in camera meetings have been used for discussing the committee’s
future work and draft reports. Aside from that, the meetings are
always public.

Ms. Labonté: We abide by rule 92(2) of the Rules.
So, in general, the meetings are public, but there are a few
exceptions like the ones indicated. That is what we did in the past.

Senator De Bané: I do not want to dwell on this too much. But
many topics are of interest to the committee; we must have
priorities, we must set our agenda from now until June, and we
must choose the topics we want to explore.

publiques. Elles ne sont pas publiques lorsqu’il s’agit de traiter de
gestion du personnel. S’il y a des cas où l’on voudrait aller à huis
clos, il faudrait qu’il y ait un vote pour l’autoriser, plutôt que dire
qu’on peut aller à huis clos quand on veut.

Dans d’autres comités sur lesquels je siège, nous avons adopté
le principe que les réunions sont publiques,sauf lors de questions
qui touchent la gestion du personnel. S’il y a d’autres cas, il faut
spécifiquement voter pour le huis clos.

Le sénateur Champagne : Je voulais rajouter une chose. Je
pense que cela a été fait assez régulièrement. Pour quelque raison
que ce soit, si la réunion est à huis clos, nous permettons aux
membres de notre personnel de demeurer dans la salle. Je voulais
simplement m’assurer que ce soit ainsi afin de ne pas avoir besoin
de le demander chaque fois.

La présidente : Sénateur Champagne, est-ce que vous seriez
prête à présenter la motion qui permet au personnel de demeurer
dans la salle tout au long de la session?

Le sénateur Champagne : Tout à fait.

La présidente : C’est-à-dire que le personnel des sénateurs soit
autorisé à demeurer dans la salle de réunion lorsque le comité
siège à huis clos, à moins que les membres du comité en décident
autrement.

Le sénateur Champagne : Voilà.

Le sénateur Fortin-Duplessis : Je seconde la motion.

La présidente : Alors vous êtes d’accord avec cela. La motion
est adoptée.

La présidente : Revenons au point soulevé par le sénateur
De Bané. Lorsque nous tenons une réunion publique et que nous
passons à huis clos, vous dites que cela prendrait une motion du
comité chaque fois?

Le sénateur De Bané : Les réunions sont publiques, mais pour
certains sujets qui concernent le personnel du comité, je
comprends fort bien que cela n’a pas besoin d’être public.
D’autre part, il faudrait que des réunions à huis clos soient
exceptionnelles et non pas suivant notre humeur.

La présidente : Ce qui s’est passé jusqu’à présent— et corrigez-
moi si je me trompe — le huis clos est utilisé lorsque nous
discutons des travaux futurs du comité et des ébauches de
rapport. À part cela, les réunions sont toujours publiques.

Mme Labonté : On suit l’article 92(2) du Règlement. Donc en
général, les réunions sont publiques, mais il y a quelques
exceptions telles qu’indiquées. C’est comme cela qu’on a
fonctionné par le passé.

Le sénateur De Bané : Je ne veux pas trop insister là-dessus.
Cependant, il y a un très grand nombre de sujets qui intéressent le
comité et il faut avoir des priorités et choisir quel sera notre
programme d’ici le mois de juin, quels sont les sujets sur lesquels
on veut se pencher.
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The Chair: Next week, the members of the Subcommittee on
Agenda and Procedure will be meeting to develop the future work
of the committee. Next Monday, the meeting will be in camera in
order to discuss the future work of the committee. That is what
we usually do. Does that answer your question?

Senator De Bané: Obviously, one of the functions of the
Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure is to come up with
an agenda.

The Chair: Exactly.

Senator De Bané: The Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure,
after all, is a subcommittee that reports to our committee. I think
that it is established that the subcommittee meets in camera. The
committee’s meetings are public. I personally do not see
why — especially on a topic like official languages that has to
do, after all, with provisions in the Constitution of Canada — the
subcommittee would not come and propose such and such a topic
to us. Why could that not all be public?

Senator Tardif: At the outset, Senator De Bané, I believe that
some of these organization meetings could be handled better in
camera because they consist only of suggestions and exchanges.
So it would be better to agree among ourselves before we go in
public. That is my opinion.

Senator De Bané: Since Senator Tardif is a great authority in
this area, I will abide by her comment.

Senator Champagne: I was going to say basically the same thing.
When we are meeting to discuss topics that we have given priority
to, I do not believe that the general public’s interest would be better
served just because we are televised. Once we start our work,
everything is public, but we should wash our dirty linen in private.

Senator De Bané: I concur with Senator Champagne’s
comments.

Senator Tardif: Since there are also members of the leadership
who are ex officio members, I would like to add that their staff
could also be present. Is that how we understand it?

The Chair: Yes. We now have the general order of reference
and also the specific orders of reference to discuss. Honourable
senators, would you like to go in camera since we will be
discussing the future work of the committee?

Senator Champagne: Anyway, we are not being televised.

Ms. Labonté: But we are being recorded right now.

The Chair: Recorded, but not televised. Very well.

So, as to the general order of reference, Senator Champagne,
do you have something for us on the subject?

Senator Champagne: My understanding is that we want our
orders of reference to be a little more specific. We are asking the
Senate to allow us to continue while we want to study such and
such a thing.

La présidente : La semaine prochaine, les membres du
Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure vont se réunir
pour élaborer les travaux futurs du comité. Lundi prochain, la
réunion se fera à huis clos afin de discuter des travaux futurs du
comité. Habituellement, c’est ce que nous faisons. Est-ce que cela
répond à votre question?

Le sénateur De Bané : Évidemment, c’est une des fonctions du
Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure de proposer un
ordre du jour.

La présidente : Exact.

Le sénateur De Bané : Finalement, le Sous-comité du
programme et de la procédure est un sous-comité qui fait rapport
à notre comité. Il me semble qu’il est établi que le sous-comité se
réunit à huis clos. Les réunions du comité sont publiques.
Personnellement, je ne vois pas pourquoi — surtout sur un sujet
comme celui des langues officielles qui touche, après tout, des
dispositions qui se trouvent dans la Constitution du Canada —, le
sous-comité ne viendrait pas nous proposer tel et tel sujet.
Pourquoi tout cela ne pourrait pas être public?

Le sénateur Tardif : Pour certaines réunions organisationnelles,
au point de départ, sénateur De Bané, je crois que certaines de ces
réunions pourraient être mieux servies si elles se tenaient
à huis clos parce que ce n’est que des suggestions, des échanges.
À ce moment-là, il serait préférable qu’on s’entende entre nous
avant d’aller en public. C’est mon avis.

Le sénateur De Bané : Comme le sénateur Tardif est une
grande autorité en ce domaine, j’adhère à son observation.

Le sénateur Champagne : J’allais dire essentiellement la même
chose. Quand on va se rencontrer pour discuter des sujets que nous
prioriserons, je ne crois pas que l’intérêt du grand public serait
mieux servi parce qu’on serait télévisé. Une fois qu’on va débuter
les travaux, tout est public, mais lavons notre linge sale en famille.

Le sénateur De Bané : J’adhère aux observations du sénateur
Champagne.

Le sénateur Tardif : Étant donné qu’il y a aussi les membres du
leadership qui sont membres ex officio, j’aimerais ajouter que leur
personnel pourrait être présent aussi. C’est ce qu’on comprend?

La présidente : Oui. Maintenant, nous avons l’ordre de renvoi
général à discuter et aussi les ordres de renvoi spécifiques. Est-ce
que vous aimeriez, honorables sénateurs, que nous passions à huis
clos, puisqu’il s’agit des travaux futurs du comité?

Le sénateur Champagne : De toute façon, nous ne sommes
pas télévisés.

Mme Labonté : Par contre, c’est enregistré en ce moment.

La présidente : C’est enregistré, mais ce n’est pas télévisé.
Très bien.

Alors l’ordre de renvoi général, sénateur Champagne, vous
aviez quelque chose à nous présenter à ce sujet?

Le sénateur Champagne : J’ai cru comprendre qu’on
souhaiterait que nos ordres de renvoi soient un peu plus précis.
Nous demandons au Sénat de nous donner la possibilité de
continuer alors que nous voulons étudier telle et telle chose.
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It is not a bad idea for it to be more specific than that one;
but that one does not tell our colleagues where we are headed.

Senator Tardif: I fully support what Senator Champagne has
said. I have also been trying to go in that direction for a few years
now. For example, the Standing Senate Committee on Official
Languages has a very general mandate, and so there is no way of
knowing which topic is being studied specifically, whether it is the
Olympic Games, health or positive measures, and so on. I find
that far too general. Communication is difficult. People cannot
see the good work the committee does in terms of studies and
reports. If we could conduct specific studies, we could better
indicate, six months at a time, what will be studied and the order
of reference. Besides, a number of committees work that way.

The Chair: That would mean introducing specific orders of
reference. We could group them together and submit them to
the Senate.

Do senators have any comments?

Senator Fortin-Duplessis: Is this a good time to propose a topic
for study or is it too early?

The Chair: It is a little too early because the subcommittee is
going to meet, put it all together and then the whole thing will be
discussed next Monday, Senator Fortin-Duplessis. Is that all right
with you?

Senator Fortin-Duplessis: That is all right with me. But I
wholeheartedly agree with Senator Tardif and Senator Champagne.

The Chair: Very well.

Senator Mockler: After what I have just heard, could you tell me
whether the previous mandate or order of reference, the one we
have in front of us, is the continuation of what we started in 2009?

The Chair: No.

Senator Tardif: It is the same thing each year. Every year, we
see the same thing, so it does not deal with anything specific in
terms of the topics of study for the current parliamentary session.

The Chair: There was some criticism in that regard to the effect
that, if the order of reference were more specific, perhaps senators
would also much better understand— senators and others— the
scope of the work accomplished by the committee.

The clerk told me that we must also have a general order
of reference.

Senator Tardif: We can take a look, but we should add in
particular and then identify.

Senator Mockler: We should complete.

Senator Champagne: Once the meeting of the subcommittee is
over and the guidelines are established, is it your intention,
Madam Chair, to present the committee with an order of
reference that is a little more specific than that one? And once

Que ce soit plus précis que cela, la vertu, ce n’est pas mauvais,
mais cela n’indique pas à nos collègues ce vers quoi nous
nous dirigeons.

Le sénateur Tardif : J’appuie entièrement ce que le sénateur
Champagne indique. Et d’ailleurs, depuis quelques années, j’essaie
d’aller dans cette direction. Par exemple, le Comité sénatorial
permanent des langues officielles a un mandat très général, et
donc, il n’y a pas moyen de savoir quel sujet est étudié
spécifiquement, que soit les Jeux olympiques, la santé ou les
mesures positives, et cetera. Je trouve que c’est beaucoup trop
général. La communication est difficile. Les gens ne peuvent pas
voir le bon travail accompli par le comité au niveau des études et
des rapports. Si on pouvait faire des études précises, on pourrait
davantage préciser, six mois à la fois, ce qui sera étudié et l’ordre
de renvoi. D’ailleurs, plusieurs comités travaillent de cette façon.

La présidente : Il s’agirait de présenter des ordres de renvoi
spécifiques. On pourrait les regrouper et les déposer au Sénat.

Est-ce que des sénateurs auraient des commentaires?

Le sénateur Fortin-Duplessis : Est-ce le bon moment pour faire
une proposition d’étude ou c’est trop tôt?

La présidente : C’est un peu trop tôt car le sous-comité va se
rencontrer, regrouper cela et le tout sera discuté lundi prochain,
sénateur Fortin-Duplessis. Est-ce que cela vous convient?

Le sénateur Fortin-Duplessis : Cela me convient. Mais j’abonde
dans le même sens que le sénateur Tardif et le sénateur Champagne.

La présidente : Très bien.

Le sénateur Mockler : J’aimerais savoir, suite à ce que je viens
d’entendre, le mandat ou l’ordre de renvoi précédent, celui que nous
avons devant nous, est-ce la suite de ce qu’on a entamé en 2009?

La présidente : Non.

Le sénateur Tardif : C’est la même chose à chaque année.
Chaque année, on voit la même chose, donc cela ne touche rien de
spécifique par rapport aux points d’étude pour la session
parlementaire en question.

La présidente : Certaines critiques à cet égard ont été émises selon
lesquelles si l’ordre du renvoi était plus spécifique, peut-être que les
sénateurs comprendraient aussi beaucoup mieux — les sénateurs et
les autres — l’ampleur du travail que le comité accomplit.

La greffière me disait qu’il fallait aussi un ordre de
renvoi général.

Le sénateur Tardif : On peut le regarder, mais ajouter des
particularités et ensuite identifier...

Le sénateur Mockler : Compléter.

Le sénateur Champagne : Une fois la rencontre du sous-comité
est terminée et les lignes directrices établies, ce que vous comptez
faire, madame la présidente, c’est de présenter au comité un ordre
de renvoi un peu plus précis que celui-là? Et une fois qu’il sera
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it is adopted, at the meeting next Monday, you can submit it to
the Senate the next day or the day after? I am sorry, I find that a
bit muddled, we do not really know where we are going with that.

The Chair: Next week, the Standing Senate Committee on
Official Languages will look at the future work of the committee,
as discussed by the subcommittee. The order of reference will be
general in nature, but it will be a lot more specific on the future
work. Is that fine?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

Senator Champagne: You understood us well. We must have
explained ourselves properly.

The Chair: As always. Thank you. If there is no further
business, I will declare this first organization meeting adjourned.

Senator De Bané: May I ask the steering committee what the
official name of the committee is?

The Chair: It is the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure.
That is its title.

Senator De Bané: I prefer ‘‘steering committee.’’

The Chair: So do I.

Senator De Bané: Could the steering committee suggest two or
three major topics so that as members of the committee, we can
react and give our opinion?

The Chair: Yes.

Senator De Bané: In the various positions I have held, I have
always felt uncomfortable when only one option was proposed.

The Chair: I understand.

Senator De Bané: Give us three or four options so that we can
express our opinions. Some people prefer one option only,
but I am not one of them.

Senator Champagne: I think that you can trust your steering
committee — Madam Chair does have a lot of experience — to
come back next week with an order of reference that includes
specific topics which you can add to or take up arms against.
I think that you can trust your steering committee to come up
with solid topics; then we can present the order of reference to the
Senate, and once it is adopted, we can start our work.

Senator De Bané: What I mean is that we are obviously not in
the realm of absolute truth and it all depends where you sit, so
everyone sees things differently. Personally, I am in favour of
specific projects to study. That seems to me absolutely
appropriate. There are so many topics to be addressed: the
Commissioner of Official Languages’ report, as an example,
shows the extent. Legislative amendments also come to mind.

So, if the committee could suggest a few projects, we would
then be able to express our own opinions.

adopté, à la réunion de lundi prochain, à ce moment-là, vous
pourrez le présenter au Sénat le lendemain ou surlendemain? Je
suis désolée, je trouve que c’est un peu vaseux, on ne sait trop où
on s’en va avec cela.

La présidente : La semaine prochaine, le Comité sénatorial
permanent des langues officielles va se pencher sur les travaux
futurs du comité tels qu’ils auront été discutés par le sous-comité.
L’ordre de renvoi sera de nature générale, mais ensuite beaucoup
plus spécifique à l’égard des travaux futurs. C’est bien cela?

Des voix : Oui.

Le sénateur Champagne : Vous nous avez bien compris. On a
dû s’expliquer correctement.

La présidente : Comme toujours. Merci. S’il n’y a pas d’autres
questions, je vais déclarer cette première réunion d’organisation
terminée.

Le sénateur De Bané : Puis-je demander au comité directeur
quel est le nom officiel du comité?

La présidente : C’est le Sous-comité du programme et de la
procédure. C’est le titre.

Le sénateur De Bané : Je préfère « le comité directeur ».

La présidente : Moi aussi.

Le sénateur De Bané : J’aimerais que le comité directeur, si
vous pouvez, propose deux ou trois grands sujets afin que nous,
les membres du comité, puissions réagir et donner notre avis.

La présidente : Oui.

Le sénateur De Bané : Je me suis toujours senti mal à l’aise
lorsque, dans les différentes fonctions que j’ai occupées, on ne
proposait qu’une seule avenue.

La présidente : Je comprends.

Le sénateur De Bané : Donnez-nous trois ou quatre options
pour que nous puissions émettre notre opinion. D’autres préfèrent
une seule option, mais je ne suis pas de ceux-là.

Le sénateur Champagne : Je pense que vous pouvez faire
confiance à votre comité directeur, madame la présidente a quand
même beaucoup d’expérience, pour que nous vous revenions la
semaine prochaine avec un ordre de renvoi comprenant des sujets
bien spécifiques auxquels vous pourrez ajouter ou vous rebiffer. Je
pense que vous pouvez faire confiance à votre comité directeur
pour arriver avec des sujets qui se tiennent bien, puis après cela,
on pourra présenter l’ordre de renvoi au Sénat, et dès qu’il est
adopté, à ce moment-là, on débute notre travail.

Le sénateur De Bané : Ce que je veux vous dire, c’est qu’on n’est
évidemment pas dans un domaine de vérité absolue et, pour
employer l’expression anglaise, ‘‘it all depends where you sit’’, donc
chacun voit les choses différemment. Moi, je suis en faveur de
projets spécifiques d’étude. Cela me semble tout à fait dans l’ordre.
Tellement de sujets peuvent être abordés et l’exemple du rapport du
commissaire aux langues officielles montre l’étendue des choses. On
peut penser également aux amendements législatifs.

Alors, si l’on pouvait suggérer quelques projets afin que nous
puissions à notre tour apporter notre propre opinion.
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The Chair: I can assure you that you will be receiving a work
plan with several topics. The problem with our committee is not
the lack of topics, but quite the opposite. I feel that you will be
satisfied with what we are going to bring next Monday.

Senator De Bané: Through the years, I have participated in a
number of committees and I have encountered situations where
the steering committee would propose one topic, and that was
that. It was frustrating. But others would come up with four or
five different ideas and ask us what we thought. Everyone would
contribute and offer their perspective; it seems to me that this is
the way to go in the long term.

The Chair: Thank you very much, Senator De Bané. Thank you
all and see you next Monday.

(The committee adjourned.)

La présidente : Je peux vous assurer que vous recevrez un plan
de travail contenant plusieurs sujets. La difficulté avec notre comité
n’est pas le manque de sujets, bien au contraire. Je pense que vous
serez satisfait de ce que nous allons apporter lundi prochain.

Le sénateur De Bané : Au cours des années, j’ai participé à
plusieurs comités et j’ai connu des situations où le comité
directeur proposait un tel sujet, point final. On se sentait
frustrés. Alors que d’autres nous arrivaient avec quatre ou
cinq idées différentes et nous demandaient ce qu’on en pensait.
Chacun apportait sa contribution, sa perspective, et il me semble
qu’à long terme, c’est la bonne façon de faire.

La présidente : Merci beaucoup, sénateur De Bané. Alors,
merci à vous tous et à lundi prochain.

(La séance est levée.)
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